#### CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the **Corporate Scrutiny Committee**held on Tuesday, 15th June, 2010 at Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields,
Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ

#### **PRESENT**

Councillor A Thwaite (Chairman)
Councillor J Narraway (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors A Arnold, G Barton, G Baxendale, D Brickhill, S Conquest, H Davenport, M Davies, P Findlow, D Topping and S Wilkinson

# **Apologies**

Councillors J Crockatt and P Edwards

#### 14 OFFICERS PRESENT

Lisa Quinn – Borough Treasurer Mark Nedderman Senior Scrutiny Officer

#### 15 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED – That the minutes of te meeting held on 19 April 2010 be approved as a correct record.

#### 16 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

# 17 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION

There were no statements from members of the public.

#### 18 WORK PROGRAMME PROGRESS REPORT

The Committee considered a report of the Borough Solicitor setting out a process to approve the work programme for 2010/2011.

This Committee at its meeting held on 19 April 2010 had approved a paper entitled 'Strengthening the Scrutiny Function' which proposed a more formal approach to the work programme setting process in 2010 to enable the views of Cabinet to be fed into the process. This approach had also been considered and endorsed by the Scrutiny Chairs Group. The main aim of the new approach was to share work programmes with colleagues in Cabinet and Corporate Management Team (CMT) at the outset, so that Overview and Scrutiny became an integral part of the corporate business planning process of the Council. Work programme items would subsequently be linked to relevant Corporate plan targets, and where appropriate, Performance Indicators and LAA targets.

It was intended that emerging work programmes of all five Overview and Scrutiny Committees would be presented to Cabinet informally in June, and then each Committee would formally endorse its work programme before the summer recess.

The committee was reminded that it needed to ensure that there was sufficient leeway to allow for additional activities throughout the year.

A schedule attached to the report, set out all existing items in the work programme.

Members were also requested to have regard to the emerging Corporate Plan and Sustainable Communities Strategy, both of which were currently in consultation stage and expected to be adopted by Council in July.

The Committee reviewed each work programme item and made the following comments

Issue		Description	Comment	Date
Grants Voluntary Organisations	to	Task and Finish group set up to offer advice to Cabinet on a fair and equitable system of allocating financial support and grants to the Voluntary and Community sector.	Current review suspended to allow an officer working group to pull together a full picture of existing commitments from the demised authorities. The Committee to receive a progress report in the summer. This matter will now transfer to Sustainable Communities	N/A
Budget		Consultation group set up to review consultation arrangements for 2011/2012.	The group guided the 2010/2011 consultation process, but its main body of work will be to determine consultation arrangements in subsequent years. The group is due to meet again on Friday 18 June	Start June 2010 and ongoing

Sustainable Community Strategy	Sustainable Communities, will now take the lead	No action required Delete from this work programme	N/A
LAP's	Sustainable Communities will now take the lead	No action required Delete from this work programme	N/A
Corporate Plan	Sustainable Communities will now take the lead	The future involvement of Corporate Scrutiny Committee queried. In meantime, Corporate Scrutiny be given an opportunity to comment on the plan.	July 2010
Local Development Framework	Sustainable Communities will now take the lead	No action required Delete from this work programme	ТВА
Video recording of Council Meetings	Should the Council invest in providing broadcast facilities.	The Committee considered interim report based upon experience of C & N , recommended that no action be taken until the long term meeting arrangements known	N/A
Start Time of Committee meetings	Some members in employment had problems with morning meetings. A request was received to review start times		N/A
Cheshire East Culture	Part of the transformation agenda to inculcate a new 'Cheshire East Culture'	No action taken to date	Ongoing
ICT harmonisation and Improvement	Harmonisation and improvement ICT facilities across the Council	Presentation received by the Committee in November 2010. Further presentation required to assess progress.	Presentation 13 July 2010
Risk Management	Assess the Council's Risk	The future	TBA

	management arrangements	involvement of Corporate Scrutiny Committee queried	
Local Transport/liaison committees	Consider setting up local political arrangements to advise/determine local highway and transportation issues	New item not yet prioritised, considered to be a low priority	
Libraries Progress Report	Matter referred from Sustainable Communities Committee as a result of the realignment of remits	New item not yet prioritised, considered to be a low priority	
Outsourcing of discretionary Leisure and Cultural Services	Matter referred from Sustainable Communities Committee as a result of the realignment of remits	New item not yet prioritised	13 July with view to setting up a Task and Finish group
Legal Services	Presentation on the structure and range of responsibilities covered by the legal service	New item not yet prioritised	,
Communications Service	Presentation on the structure and range of responsibilities covered by the communications service	New item not yet prioritised	Presentation future meeting
Assets register	Presentation on the assets register and the 'assets Challenge' process	Not yet prioritised	Presentation13 July 2010 with view to setting up Task and Finish Group
Review of IT provision and support for Members	Review of the work of the Cabinet panel Chaired by Councillor Narraway	Regular updates	Ongoing
Sport 2012 Olympics		Delete from work programme	
Events	The Committee to be consulted by the Portfolio holder on specific issues	No action required at the moment	N/A
Future of Council owned farms		Covered in Assets presentation/review	
Procurement			TBA
Shared Services		Presentation at future meeting	TBA

# 19 MEMBERS IT PANEL END OF YEAR REPORT - 2010

The Committee considered a report of the chairman of the Members IT panel summarisng progress made during the 12 months since the inception of the panel.

The panel had nmet 13 times during 2009/2010 and had made significant progress in a number of areas including:

- Majority of Ohesire East CouncilPC's and laptops being encrypted and virtually all Members using 'Our cheshire' to access their email system
- Over a quarter of Members have received new PC's or laptops, with a further rollout later this year
- 81 new Samsung CLX 3175 printers have been purchased
- A training needs survey completed
- Establishment of a single number for the IT service desk and an out of hours service.

Work was continuing to replace old PC's and laptops used by Members and IT training guides will be produced and the option of focused PC topic training sessions explored further.

In addition, a new support logging system will be installed and a training and support package will be developed for new members ready for May 2011.

RESOLVED – That the report be received and noted.

#### 20 FORWARD PLAN - EXTRACTS

The Committee considered items currently listed in the forward plan.

Members discussed the need to have more detailed information in the forward plan in a more timely manner to enable Overview and Scrutiny Members to identify potential work programme items at an earlier stage

RESOLVED – That cabinet be requested to include items in the forward plan at as early stage in the decision making process as possible and to aim to include items for a minimum of 4 months wherever possible.

### 21 CONSULTATIONS FROM CABINET

There were no consultations from Cabinet.

#### 22 MEETING WITH PORTFOLIO HOLDERS

The Committee discussed arrangements to meet the portfolio holders responsible for functions within the Corporate Committee's remit. The Chairman informed the Committee that informal discussions would be required with Portfolio holders to talk about potential work programme items and all Member of the Committee would be invited to attend.

RESOLVED – That the Senior Scrutiny Committee be requested to set up a meeting with portfolio holders and extend an invitation to the meeting to all Members of the Committee, and a summary of the points discussed with portfolio holders be circulated to all Members of this Committee in due Course.

# 23 MEMBERS AWARENESS SESSION ON THE COUNCIL'S MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

RESOLVED – That consideration of this matter be deferred to the next meeting.

# The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 4.10 pm Councillor A Thwaite (Chairman)